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State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Drinking Water

June 22, 2015

Earl Kelso, Plant Manager
16429 W. Kamm Avenue
Helm, CA 93627

RE: Con Agra Foods — Water System No. 1000536
Citation No. 03-23-15C-066

Dear Mr. Kelso:

The State Water Resources Control Board — Division of Drinking Water (Division) has issued
Citation No. 03-23-15C-066 for violation of directives of Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-020.
The Citation is enclosed.

The California Safe Drinking Water Act, Section 116577, provides for this agency to be reimbursed
by the public water system for costs incurred for preparing and issuing an enforcement action to
that system. Therefore, your water system will be billed for the preparation and issuance of this
order. Our costs are approximately $128 per hour. You will receive a bill for these costs in August
2015, following the end of the State's fiscal year, from our Fee Billing Unit in Sacramento.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Philip Dutton at (559) 447-3300.

Sincerely,

-

? f
Betsy S. Lichti, P.E.
Senior Sanitary Engineer, Fresno District

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA BRANCH
DRINKING WATER FIELD OPERATIONS

BSL/PD

Fepicia Mancus, chain | THoMAs HoOWARD, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

385 West Bullard Avenue, Suite 101, Fresne, GA 93704 | www.waterboards.co.gov
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

IN RE: CON AGRA FOODS
WATER SYSTEM NO. 1000536

IO CON AGRA FOODS FOOD INGREDIENTS COMPANY, INC.,
ATTN: EARL KELSO, PLANT MANAGER
16429 W. KAMM AVENUE
HELM, CA 93627

CITATION NO. 03-23-15C-066

FOR VIOLATION OF THE
CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE SECTION 116555(a)(1)
AND DIRECTIVES OF COMPLIANCE ORDER NO. 03-23-14R-009

Issued on June 22, 2015

The State Water Resources Control Board (hereinafter “Board”), acting by and through its
Division of Drinking Water (hereinafter “Division”) and the Deputy Director for the
Division (hereinafter “Deputy Director”), hereby issues this Citation pursuant to Section
116650 of the California Health and Safety Code (hereinafter “CHSC”) to Con Agra Foods
Food Ingredients Company, Inc., for violation of CHSC section 116555(a)(1) and directives

of Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009 (hereinafter “Compliance Order™).
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APPLICABLE AUTHORITIES

CHSC, Section 116555(a)(1) states in relevant part:

(a) Any person who owns a public water system shall ensure that the system does all of the
following:

(1) Complies with primary and secondary drinking water standards.
CHSC, Section 116650 states in relevant part:

(a) If the department determines that a public water system is in violation of this chapter or
any regulation, permit, standard, citation, or order issued or adopted thereunder, the
department may issue a citation to the public water system. The citation shall be served
upon the public water system personally or by certified mail. Service shall be deemed
effective as of the date of personal service or the date of receipt of the certified mail. If a
person to whom a citation is directed refuses to accept delivery of the certified mail, the
date of service shall be deemed to be the date of mailing.

(c) A citation may specify a date for elimination or correction of the condition constituting
the violation.

(d) A citation may include the assessment of a penalty as specified in subdivision (e).
(e) The department may assess a penalty in an amount not to exceed one thousand dollars

($1,000) per day for each day that a violation occurred, and for each day that a violation
continues to occur. A separate penalty may be assessed for each violation

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Division is informed by Con Agra Foods Food Ingredients Company, Inc., and believes
that the Con Agra Foods Water System (hereinafter “Water System”), is a privately owned
nontransient noncommunity water system located in Fresno County that supplies water for
domestic purposes to a population of 25 employees of Con Agra Foods, served through 1
industrial service connection. The Water System operates under Domestic Water Supply

Permit No, 03-23-09P-050, issued on September 24, 2009,

20f7 Citation No. 03-23-15C-066
Issued: June 18, 2015
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The Division issued Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009 to the Water System on

September 24, 2014, for noncompliance with the Stage 2 Disinfection Byproduct Rule

(hereinafter “S2DBPR”) Maximum Contaminant Level for Total Trihalomethanes

(hereinafter “TTHM™). A copy of the Compliance Order is included as Attachment A. The

Compliance Order directed the Water System to take certain actions, including the

following Directives:

5.

10.

Prepare a Corrective Action Plan identifying improvements to the water system
designed to correct the water quality problem (violation of the TTHM MCL) and
eliminate the need to deliver water to consumers that does not meet primary
drinking water standards. The plan shall include a time schedule for completion of
various phases of the project such as design, construction, and startup.

Present the Corrective Action Plan required under Directive No. 4, above, to the
Division in an office meeting no later than November 28, 2014,

Submit quarterly progress reports to the Division. The first quarterly progress report
shall describe progress made in the fourth quarter of 2014 and shall be submitted to
the Division by January 10, 2014, using the form provided as Attachment D.
Operate the existing water system to minimize formation of total trihalomethanes
and haloacetic acids in the distribution system.

Submit a written response by October 28, 2014, indicating its willingness to comply
with the directives of this Compliance Order.

By no later than July 1, 2017, achieve compliance with the total trihalomethanes
maximum contaminant level, with the completion of a project and demonstration

that the locational running annual average is reliably less than the MCL. The Water

3of7 Citation No. 03-23-15C-066
Issued: June 18, 2015
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System shall provide written notification of the date that compliance is achieved, no

later than ten days following receipt of the laboratory sampling results.

To date, the Water System has not complied with Directive Nos. 5, 6, 7, or 9 of the
Compliance Order. Specifically, the Water System has not presented a Corrective Action
Plan to the Division. Further, the Division has not received a response to the Compliance
Order from the Water System. The Water System continues to violate the TTHM maximum
contaminant level and does not appear to be making adequate progress towards the

compliance deadline established with Directive No. 10.

DETERMINATIONS

The water system has failed to comply with Directive Nos. 5, 6, 7, and 9 of Compliance

Order No. 03-23-14R-009.

DIRECTIVES

The Con Agra Foods Water System and its owner of record are hereby directed to take the

following actions:

1 Comply with the Directives of Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009.

P Present the Corrective Action Plan to the Division’s Fresno District in an office
meeting by no later than July 31, 2015, for review and approval,

4 0of 7 Citation No. 03-23-15C-066
Issued: June 18, 2015
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the directives herein.

Submit a written response to this Citation indicating a willingness to comply with

Notify the Division in writing no later than five (5) days prior to the deadline for

performance of any Directive set forth herein if Water System and/or its owner of

record anticipates it will not timely meet such performance deadline.

All submittals required by this Order shall be addressed to:

Betsy S. Lichti, P.E.,

Senior Sanitary Engineer

State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Drinking Water

Fresno District

265 W. Bullard Avenue, Suite 101
Fresno, CA 93704

As used in this Citation, the date of issuance shall be the date of this Citation; and the date

of service shall be the date of service of this Citation, personal or by certified mail, on the

Water System or its owner of record.

The Division reserves the right to make such modifications to this Citation and/or to issue

such further citations as it may deem necessary to protect public health and safety. Such

modifications may be issued as amendments to this Citation and shall be deemed effective

upon issuance.

S5of 7

Citation No. 03-23-15C-066
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Nothing in this Citation relieves the Water System or its owner of record of its obligation to
meet the requirements of the California SDWA, or any regulation, standard, permit or order

issued thereunder.

PARTIES BOUND

This Citation shall apply to and be binding upon the Water System, its owners,

shareholders, officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, successors, and assignees.

SEVERABILITY

The Directives of this Citation are severable, and the Water System and its owner of record
shall comply with each and every provision hereof, notwithstanding the effectiveness of any

other provision.

FURTHER ENFORCEMENT ACTION

The California SDWA authorizes the Board to issue a citation with assessment of
administrative penalties to a public water system for violation or continued violation of the
requirements of the California SDWA or any regulation, permit, standard, citation, or order
issued or adopted thereunder including, but not limited to, failure to correct a violation
identified in a citation or compliance order, The California SDWA also authorizes the
Board to take action to suspend or revoke a permit that has been issued to a public water

system if the public water system has violated applicable law or regulations or has failed to

Gof 7 Citation No. 03-23-15C-066
|ssued: June 18, 2015
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comply with an order of the Board; and to petition the superior court to take various
enforcement measures against a public water system that has failed to comply with an order
of the Board. The Board does not waive any further enforcement action by issuance of this

Citation,

A Lo fa— ekt
Date Betsy S-lich#, P.E. ©
Senior Sanitary Engineer
Fresno District
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
DRINKING WATER FIELD OPERATIONS

BSL/PD

Attachments:
Attachment A: Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009

Via Certified Mail: 70143490000178689023

7of7 Citation No. 03-23-15C-066
Issued: June 18, 2015




10
14
12
i3
14
15
16
17
18
1%

20

24
25

25

27

COURT PAPER
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
SID. 113 (REV. 395}

157 08P 10 1 19947

Attachment A

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
TVISTON OF BRINKING WATER

IN RE: CON AGRA FOODS
WATER SYSTEM NO, 1000536

TO: MR. EARL KELSO, PLANT MANAGER
CON AGRA FOODS
16429 W. KAMM AVENUE
[HELM, CA 93627

COMPLIANCE ORDER NO. 03-23-141R-009

FOR NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE
STAGE 2 BPISINFECTION BYPROBDUCT RULE
MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVELS FOR
TOTAL TRITIALOMETHANES
SECTYON 64533(a), TTFLE 22, CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS

Issued on September 29, 2014

Seetion 116655 of the California Health and Safely Code authorizes the issuance of a
compliance order to a public water system for violation of the Califurnia Safe Dvinking
Water Act (Health and Safety Code, Division 104, Part 12, Chapter 4, commencing with
Scction 116270) (hereinafler “California SDWA™), or any rcgulation, standard, perinit or

order issued or adopted thereunder.

‘The State Water Resources Control Board (hercinafier “State Board”), sacting by and
through ils Division of Drinking Water (hereinalter “Division”) and the Deputy Director for

(he Division (hereinafter “Deputy Director”), hereby issues a complisnce order lo ConAgra
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Foods Food Tngredients Company, Tnc. (hereinaflor “Con Agra”} for violation of California

Code of Regulations (hetcinaficr “CCR™), Section 64533(a), Maximum Contaminant

Levels for Disinfection Byproducts.

APPLICABLE AUT{IORITIES

Section 116655, California SDWA, stafes in relevant part:

{(a) Whenever the department determvines (hat any pcrson has violaled or is violating this
chapler, or any permit, regulation, or standard issucd or adopled purstant to this chapter, (he
divector may issuc an order doing any of the following:

{1) Dirceting compliance forlhwitl,

(2) Directing compliance in accordance with a time schedule set by the department.

(3) Directing that appropriale preventive aclion be taken in the case of » threatened

violation.
(b) An order issued pursvant lo (his scetion may include, bt shtall not be limiled to, any o

all of the following requivements:
(1) That the existing plant, works, or system be repaired, altered, or added to.
(2) That purification or treatment works be instatled,
(3) That the sowrce of the water supply be changed.
(4) That no additional service comection be made to the system.
(5) That (he watce supply, the plant, or Ihe systea) be monitored.
(6) That a report on the condition and operation of the plant, works, system, or water
supply be submitted to the departient,

Section 64533(a), Title 22, CCR, stales in relevant part:

(a) Using the monitoring and celculation methods specified in sections 64534, 04534.2,

64533-A shall not be exceeded in drinking watcr supplied to the public.

20f10 Compliance Qrder No. 03-23-14R-000
igstied: September 29, 2014
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‘Table 64533-A
Maxinuum Contaminant Levels and Detectiont Limits for Purposes of Reporting
Bisinfection Byproducts

Bisinfection Byproduct Maximum Detection Limit for
Contaminant Levet Purposes of Repoeting
(mg/L) (mg/L)
Total trihalomethanes (TTHM) 0.080
... Bromodichloromethane | ..0:0010
Bromofoem | .0.0010
__ Chlorolorm _0.0010
Dibromochioromethanc o 100010
Haloncelle acids (five) (HAAS) [ 0.060 ' ‘
Monochiereacetic Acid 0.0020 o o
Dichiloroacctic Acid 0010
‘Trichloroacetic Acid Dol
Monobromoacetic Acid 00010
___Dibromoacetic Acid 0.0000
Bromate 0.010 ..0.0050
Chlorte " " L0 70,020

Additionsl dpplicable Authorities arc located in Aftachiment A, which is attached hercto

and incorporated by reference.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Con Apra Foods water system (hereinalter “Water System™) is a privately owned
nontransicnt noncommunity water system located in Fresno County that sapplics water for
domeslic purposes fo approximately 25 persons, as reported to the Division, cmployed by
Con Apra, and served [hrough a single service conncction. The Water System opetates

under revised Domestic Water Supply Permit No. 03-23-09P-050), issucd on September 24,

2008,

3 of10 Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009
fssued: September 28, 2014
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The Water System utitizes trcated surface water obtained from the California Aqueduct, via
Westlands Water District, The raw water has been treated by a conventional filtration
treatiment plant, Rf.:cenliy, the Water System has removed the upflow clavification tank,
floceulation tank, and clesvwell, md installed a new pressure clarifier and cleanwell, The
Water System has submitted u partial permit amendment application for the changes to the

freatment system, but the Division has not issucd an amended permit approving the

freatment systein.

CCR, Title 22, Chapter 13.53 (hereinafler “Slage 2 Disinfection Byproduct Rule” or
“$2DBPR™) adopted by California, effective June 21, 2012, requires water systoms serving
less than 16,000 porsons to moniter and report disinfection byproduct and residual
dsinfectant levels, The S2DBPR applics to any community or nontransient noncommunity
waler system (hal treals water with a chemical disinfectant in any pavi of (he treatment
process or that provides waler conlaining a chemical disinfectant. CCR. Section 643533
establishes a maximum contaminant fevel (hereinafler “MCLY) in drinking water for total

trihalomethancs (horeinaftee *1'FHM”) and haloacetic acids (five) (herinaller “HAASY) in

drinking water of 0,080 mg/T. and 0.060 mg/L, respectively.

CCR, Scction 64534.2, cstablishes a roufine moniloring frequeney for a swface water
aystem serving a population fess than 300 individuals of one sample Tor T'THMs and
HAASs per year per realmeni plant during the month of warmest water temperature, The
Water System is on an incressed moniforing [requency of onc sample per quarier per

treatment plant, as required by Table 64534.2-A.

40f 10 Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-008
Issued: Soptember 29, 2014




T
11
12
13
T4
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
2z
23

24

26

27

COURT PAPER
§1ATE UF CALIFORNIA
STe, §13 (REV. 3-05)

G338 OSE* 10 119927

CCR, Section 64535.2(e)(1), specifies ongoing compliance deteyminations for quarterly
TTHM and ITAA3 monitoring; specifically, compliance with the TTHM and HAAS MCLs
are based on a locational tunning annual avorage (LRAA), computed quarterly, at each
approved sample site. The Water System is required (o cn]léut one TTHM sample and one
ITAAS samplo at the location in the distribution system with the highest historic TTHM and
TIAAS rosufts, respectively, The Water System’s approved S2DBPR. sample site is: Fab

Siak - Fauwcet.

A sumimary of the Water System’s recent TTIIM and IIAAS monitoring is presented in the

table below.,

Table 1: Stage 2 DBPR Sample Site Results
1.4b Sink - Faucet

TTHM HAAS
. (mg/1) (mg/1)
Samgple Quuiter MCL =
| G080 ROSO
40 2013 0180 |...0082
1Q 2014 NI D030
2Q 2014 0.270 0.047
_3Q2014 0.270 0.11)
l 3Q 2014 LRAA .18 0.063

The Water System was previously in violation of the TTIIM MCL under the Stage 1
Disinfection Byproduet Rule. Compliance Order No. 03-23-100-007 was issued to the
Water Syslem on August 31, 2010, for that vielation. The Division issncd Compitance
Order Amendment No. 03-23-13RA-002, adding a deadline for the Waler System {o relum
to compliance with the 'I"THM MCT,, This complisnce order replaces and voids Compliance
Order No, 03-23-100-007 and Complisnce Order Amendment No. 03-23-13RA-002, and
their direclives.

Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009
tssued; September 29, 2014

Gof 10
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DETERMINATIONS

Based on the above Statement of Facls, the Division has determined that the Waler System

| has violated the LRAA MCL for TTHMs during the third quarter of 2014, as shown in

Table | above.

DIRECTEVES

To ensure (hat the water supplicd by the Con Agra Foods water system s at all times safe,

wholesome, health{ul, and polable, and pursuant to the California SDWA, Con Apra s

hereby directed to take the Joltowing actions:

L. Comply with CCR, Title 22, Section 64533(a) In fiture monitoring peviads afler

condueting upgtades of the water treatment fucility and treatment operations.

2. Provide quartexly public nolification of its inability to the meel the TTHM MCL
during any calendar quarter that the {our-guarter locational running annual average
exceeds the TTHM MCL. Nofification procedures and format arc provided in

Attachment B. An electronic vorsion of Attachment B is available upon request.

3. Proof of public notification shall be provided to the Division following each
guarierly notification by the 10™ day of (he month following notification, using the

form provided as Attachment C.

gofl 10 Compliance Order No. 03-23-14R-009
{ssuad. Saptember 29, 2014
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Continue lo collect quarterly samples for TTHM's and HAAS's from the
dis!ribuliunﬂsystem in accordance with an approved DRP monitoving plan. The
analytical results shall be reporied to the Division clectronically by the analyzing
fabaratory noe later than the 10® day following the month in which the analysis was

completed.

Prepare a Corrective Action Plan identifying mprovements to the water system
designed 1o covreet tho water quality problem (violation ol the TTHM MCL) and
elimingle the need (o deliver watcr to conswners that does nol mect primary
drinking water slandards. The plan shall include a time schedule for comptetion of

various phases of the project such as design, construction, and startup.

Present the Cotreetive Action Plan required under Ditective No, 4, above, to the

Division in an oflice meeting no later than November 28, 2014,

Submit quarterly progress reports to the Division, The lirst quarterly propress report
shall desuribe progress made in the fourth quarter of 2014 and shall be submitted to

the Division by January 10, 2014, using the form provided as Attachunent I,
Operate the cxisting watcr system to minimize formation of total trihalomethanes

wnd hatoacetic acids in the distribution system.

7of 10 Compliance Order No. 03-23-1R-008
lasucd; Soptember 28, 2014




9. Submil g wrilten response by Qctober 28, 2014, indicating ils willingness to comply

with the directives of ihis Compliance Ordoer.

4] 10, By no later than July 1, 2017, achicve compliance with the tota!l trihalomcthancs

5 maximum contaminant Jevel, with the completion of a project and demonstration
® that the locational running avnual average is reliably less than the MCI.. The Water
: System shall provide written notification ol the date that compliance is achieved, no
o later than ten days following receipt of the luboratory sampling results,

10

111 Al submittals required by this Order shall be addressed fo:

12 Betsy §. Lichti, P.E.,
13 Sentor Sanitary Bngineer
State Waler Resources Control Boaxd

Division of Dvinking Waler

14
Fresno Districl

15 265 W. Bullard Avenue, Suile 101
Iresno, CA 93704

16

7 The Division reserves the vight to make such modifications 1o this Order as it may deem

18 necessary (o protect public health and safety. Such modifications may be issned as
:i amendments to this Order and shall be effective upon issuance. Nothing in this Compliance
2 Order refieves Con Agra of its obligation to meet the reguivements of the California SDWA,
22 I or any xegulation, standard, permit or order issued thereunder.

23

24 1f the Con Agra Foods water system is unable to perform the tasks specified in (his Order

B o any reason, whether within or beyond its control, and if' the Con Agra oods waler

26 . = .
sysfem noliftes the Division in writing no less than five days in advanco of the due date, the
27
! Division may extend the lime Jor performance if the Con Agm Foods water systen
goli0 Compliance Qrder No. 03-23-14R-009
COLURT PAPER Issued: September 29, 2014
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domonstralos that it has used its best efforts to comply wilth the schedule and other

requirements of (his Order,

PARTIES BOUND

‘This Compliance Oxder shall apply to and be binding upon Con Agra, ils owners,

sharcholders, officers, directors, agents, employees, conlvactors, successors, and assignees,

SEVERABILITY

The directives of (s Compliance Order ate severable, and Con Agra shall comply

with euch and every provision thercol notwithstanding the effectiveness of any

provision.

FURTHER ENFORCEMENT ACTION

‘The California SDWA authorizes the Division to issue citations and compliance
orcors with assessmient of administrative penalties to a public waler system for
violation or continued viélation ol the requirgments of the California SDWA or any
permit, regulation, permit or order issued or adopted thercunder including, but not
{imited to, failure to correct a violation identified in a citalion ov compliance order.
The California SDWA also anthorizes the Division to take aclion 0 suspend or
revoke a permil that has been issued (o a public water system if the system has
violated applicable law or regulations or has failed (o comply with an order of the

90f10 Comgliance Qrder No. 03-23-14R-000
issuad: Soptember 29, 2014
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Division; and to petition the superior coutt to take various enforcement measures
againsl a public water systom (hat has failed to comply with an order of the
Division. The Division does nol waive any {ther enforeement action by issuance

of this compliance order.

9~ 29~ 2014

Date
Supervising Sanilary Engincer
Cential California Seclion
SOUTIIERN CALIFORNTA BRANCH
DRINKING WATER FIELD OPERATIONS
CLC/PL
Atfachimenis:

Attachiient A:  Applicalle Authoritics
Attaclinent I3:  Public Notification Form
Attachment C:  Proof of Notilication Form
Attachiment D:  Quarterly Progress Report Form

10 0f 10 Complisnce Order No, 03-23-14R-008
issued: Soptomhor 28, 2014




Apphlieable Authorities

Aftachment A

Viotation of Maximum Contaminsmé Vevels of

Disinfectant Byproduets

California Ilealth and Safety Code, Section 116655, stales in televant part:

(a) Whencver the department determines (hat any person has violated or is violating this
chaptor, or any permit, repulation, or standard issued or adopted pursuant to this chapier,

the dircetor may issuc an order doing any of the following:

(1) Divecting compliance forthwith.
(2) Direcling compliance in accordance with a lime schedule set by the

depmiment,

(3) Directing that approprialc preventive action be taken in the case of 4

threatened violation.

(b) An order issued pursumnl Lo (his scetion may include, but shall not be limited to, any

or all of the following requirements:
(1) ‘That the existing planl, works, or systom be ropaired, altered, o added to.

(2) That purification or treahment works be instatled.
(3) That the source of the water supply be changed.

(4) That no additional service connection be made to the system.
(5) That {he water supply, the plant, or the system be monitored.
(6) That & report on the condition and operation of the plant, works, syslem, or
water supply be submiited to the department.

EXCERPTS OF REGULATIONS:
DISINFECTANT RESIDUALS, DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS, AND
DISINFECTION BYPRODUCT PRECURSORS

§64533. Maximum Contaminant Levels for Disinfection Byproduets,
(a) Using the monitoring and calculation methods specificd in scctions 64534, 64534.2, 64535,
and 64535.2, the primary MCLs for the disinfection byproducts shown in table 64533-A shall not

be exceeded in drinking waler supplicd to the public.

Table 64533-A

Maximum Contaminant Levels and Deteetion Limits for Parposes of Reporting

Disinfection Byproducts

' Disinfection Byproduet

Tolal rikalomethanes (1TFIM)

Bromodichioromethane

Bromoform
Chloroform

Dibromochloromethane

Maximum Detection Limit for
Contaminant Level Puyposes of Reporting
Gng/Ly) (ug/L)
0.080 .

0.0010
00010
00010
0.0010 ]




Disinfection Byproduet Maximum Detection Limit for
Contamisnant Lovel Purposes of Reporting
I (mg/Ly) (mpfl)
Haloucetic acids (five) (HAAS) 0,060 L
Monochloreacetic Acid o o 0.0020
Dichloroacetic Acid o 0.0010
| Tiichloroacetic Acid 0.0010_
___ Monolromoaeetic Acid ~ 0,000
Dibromaacetic Acid o 0,0010
Bromate 0.0050
@ ranens 0.010 [ ‘e O'UOlO,l R
Chioritc ' 1.0 ' 0.020

' For unalysis perlormed uéfné LPA Method 317.0 Reyision 211,32. 18, or 326.0

§64534, General Monitoring Reguirentends,

(a) Lixcept as provided in subscetion (b), analyses vequired pursnant to this chapter shall be
performed by laboratories cerlified by the Department to perform such analyses pursuant fo
Atticle 3, commeneing with section 100825, of Chapter 4 of Parl | of Division 101, Health and
Safety Code, Unless otherwise divested by the Departuent, analysos shall be made in
socordance with EPA approved methods as preseribed in 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part
141,131 (63 Fed, Reg. 69466 (December 16, 1998), as amended at 66 Fed. Reg, 3776 (January
16, 2001), 7t Fed, Reg, 479 (January 4, 2006), 71 Fed. Reg. 37168 (June 29, 2000), wnd 74 Fed.
Reg. 30958 (June 29, 2009)), which are incorporated by reference.

(b) Sample collection, and ficld tests including pH, alkalinity, and chlorine, chloramines, and
chlorine dioxide residual disinlectants, shall be performed by personnel (rained to perform such
sample collections and/or lests by

(1) The Department;

(2) A laboratory certified pursuant to subsection (a); or

(3} An operator, certified by the Department pursuant (o section 106875(a) or (b} of the
Heaith and Safety Code and trained by an entily in paragtaph (I} or (2} to porform such samplo
collections and/or tests.

{c) Systems shall take all samples during normal operaling conditions, wh ich exclude those
circumstances covered under section 64533.5(b).

(<) A system may apply to the Deparlment for approval to consider multiple wells deawing
water from a single aquifor as one treatment plant for determining the minimwm number of
TTHM and [TAAS semples required under section 64534.2(a). In owder to qualify for Ihis
rediction in monitoring requirements a systein shail demonstrate to the Department that the
multiple wells produce water ivom the same aquifer. To make this denmonstration, a system shall
submit information to the Depariment regarding the localion, depth, construction, and geolugic
fealures of cach well, and water quality information for each well. The Department will use this
infomation to determine whether the wells produce waler rom a single aquifer.

(€} Systems shall usc only data collecled under the provisions of this chapter (o quadify for
reduced monitoring pursvant to this article.




(f) Systems that fail to monitor shall be In violation of (e monitoting requirements for the
entive monitoring period (hat a monitoring result would be used in caloulating compliance with
MCLs or MRDLs, and shall nofify the public pursuant (o sections 64463, 64463.7, and 64463, I
addition to reporting to the Depariment prrsuant to sections 64537 throngh 64537.6.

(2) Systems that fail to monitor in aceordance with the monitoving plan required by section
64534.8 shall be in vielation of the moniloring requirements, and shall notify the public pursuant
Lo sections 64463, 64463.7, and 64465, in addition fo roporting to the Department pursuant to
seclions 64537 through 64537.6.

§64534.2. Disinfection Byprodacts Monitoring,
(&) Community and nontransicnt noncominunity water systoms shall monitor for TTHM and
[TAAS at the frequencies and Tocations indicated in table 64534.2-A.

Table 64534.2-A
Routine and Inereased Monitoring Frequency for TTHM and HAAS

COLUMN A COLUMN R COLUMN C COLUMND
Type of System Persons Minimitm Sample location in the distribufion
Served manitoring system & increased moritoring
fregquency Jrequencies
Systems using 210,000 Four samples per At least 25 percent ol all samples
approved surface quarter per collected each guarler at locations
waler trcatment plant  representing maximum vesidence

{ime, Remaining samptes taken at
Jocations representative ol at least
average restdence time in the
distribution system and representing
the entire distribution system, laking
into account number of persons
sorved, different sources of water, and
dilferent freatment methods',

S00-9,999  Onesamplepcr  Locations vepresenting maxinum

quarter per residence time',
trcatmenl plant

< 530 Onc sample per  Locations representing maximum
yoar per residence time'. If the sample (or

freatment plant  average of annual samples, i more
during month of  than one sample is taken) exceeds
warmest water MCL, system shali increase
temperatura monitoring lo one sampie per
treatment plant per quarter, taken sl g
point reflecting the maximum
residence time in the distribution
system, until system meets reduced




Systerms using only
ground watet not
under clircet
influcnee of surface
wafcr and using

10,000

cheinicat disinfectant

<10,000

One saple
per quatter
per treatoent
plant

One sample per
year per
treatment plant
during month of
warmest watey
temperatare

moniloxing criteria in pavagraph (3) of
(liis subsection.

Locations representing maximum
residence time’,

Locations represenfing maxinum
residence time'. If the sample (or
average of annual samples, if more
than one sample is taken) cxcecds
MCL, system shall increase
monitoring to onc sample per
treatment plant por quarter, taken at a
point rellecling the maximum
residence time In the distribution
system, until system meots reduced
moniforing eriterig in parvagraph (3) of
(his subseclion,

Yiea system elects to smmple more frequently fhan the minimum required, at east 25 percent of ali sunples
colleeted oach guarter (including those taken jn excess of the vequired frequency) shall be taken at Joeations that
represent The maximum residence time of the weler in the distiibution systemy. The remaining sninples shall be taken
at locations representative olag least average residenee time i the distribation system.

(1) Systems may apply to the Departient to monitor al a reduced frequency in accordance with
table 64534.2-B3. ‘L'he application shall include the results of all TOC, TTHM, and HAAS
monitoring conducted in the previous 12 months and the proposed revised monitoring plan as
required by section 64534,8, The Departiment will evaluate data submitted with the application
to determine whether or not he system is efigible for the reduced monitoring specified in table

| One éé}'ﬁ'{ﬁe per trealment plant
per quarter af distvibution
gystem location reflecling |

64534.2-B;
‘Table 64534.2-13
Redueed Monitoring Frequency for T'VHM and HAAS
the system may reduce
monitoring if it has
If the system is monitored at least one
agh) ... serving.., year and.., fo this level
Approved 210,000 | | TTHM' <0040 mg/l.
surface water and HAAS! 0,030
system which mgT,
has a source

maximum residence fime.




watcr TOC'
fovel, before
any {reaiment,
£4.0 my/L,
500~ TTHM' 0,040 mg/L. One saniple per lreatment plant
9,999 and per year at distvibution sysicm
FIAAS! <0.030 mg/T, location reflecling maximum
residence fime during month of
o warinest waler lemperature.
Systent using =10,000 TTHM' <0,040 mg/L One sample per treatment plant
only ground and pev year at distribution system
walter not under IIAAS' £0.030 mg/I location rellecting maximum
direct influence residence time ducing month of
of surface water warmest water lemporature,
ancl using
chemical
disinfoctant N
<10,000 | | TTHM' <0040 wg/L One sample por fricatment plant
and HAAS! <0.030 per {hvee-year monitoring cycle
mg/L for two at distribution system location
consccutive years reflecting maximuam residence
OR time during month of warmest
TTIM! £0.020 mg/L. water temperature, with the
and HAAS! €0.015 three-year eycle beginning on
mg/L. for one year January | following the quarter
in which system qualifies for
reduced moniforing.

"TOC, TTHM, and HAAS values based on annual averages.

{2) Systems on reduced monitoring shall resume monitoring at the fiequency specified in column
C of tuble 64534,2-A in the quarter immediately {ollowing the quarter in which the system
exceeds 0.060 mg/], fov the T'THM annual average or 0.045 mg/L for the HIAAS annnal average,
or 4 mp/L for the source waler TOC anmal average. For systems using only ground water not
under the dircet influence of suvfnce water and serving fewer than 10,000 persons or for systoms
using approved surface water and sevving fower than 500 persons, i sither the TTIIM annual
average is >0.080 mg/L or the IIAAS ammual average is >0.060 my/T,, the system shall go lo
increased monitoring identified in column D of (ahle 64534.2-A in the quarler immecdiately
following the quarter in which the system exceeds 0.080 mg/L or 0.060 mg/T. for the TTIIM and
ITAAS annual averages, respectively; and

(3) Systems on incressed monitoring pursuant to colunmn D of table 64534.2-A may return to
routine monitoring specified in column C of table 64534.2-A if, afler at lcast one year of
monitoring, TTHM annual average is $0.060 mg/T, and HAAS annual average is £0.045 mg/L.

(b) Communily and nontransicnt noncomniunily waler systems using chlorine dioxide shall
conduct monitoring for chlorife as follows:

G




(1) Systems shall take daily samples at the cntrance to the disiribution system and analyze the
samples the same day the samples ave faken. For any daily sample that excoeds the chiorite
MCL, the system shall take three additional chiotite distribution system samples the following
day (in addition to the daily sample required at tho entrance to the disivibution system) at these
locations: as closc to the first customer as possible, at a location representutive of average
residence time, and at a location reflecting maximum residence time in the distiibution system.
The system shall anafyze the additional sumples within 48 hours of being notified pursnant to
section 64537(h) of the exceedance;

(2) Systems shall take a three-sample set each month in the distribution system. The system
shall take one sample at each of the following locations: as ¢losc to the first customer as
possible, at & location vepresentative of average residence time, and at a location teflesling
maximum residence lime m the disteibution system. Any additional roufine sampling shalt bo '
conducted in the same mamer (as threc-sample sets, at the specilied locations). The system may
usc the results of additional monitoring conducted under puragraph (1) to meet the monitoring !
requirement in this paragraph; ,
(3) Systems may apply to the Department to reduce monthly chlovite monitoring in the ’
distribudion system pursuant to paragraph (2) to onc three-saniple sel per quarter after one year o £
monitoring during which no individua! chlorite sample taken in the distribution system has
exceeded the chiorite MCL and the system has not been tequired to conduct additional
monitoring under patagraph (1). "The application shall inchude the results of all chiorite o]
monitoring conducled in the previous 12 months and tho proposed revised monitoring plan as :
required by section 645348, The Department will evalnale data submitted with the application
and determine whelber or nof the system is eligible lo reduce monitoring to one threc-sample set
per quarter. The systeni may remain on the reduced moniforing schedule until either any of the
three individual chlorite samples (aken quarterly in the distribution system under puragraph (2)
exceeds the chlorite MCL or the system is required to conduct additional monitoring under
paragraph (1), al which time the system shall revert to routine monitoring; and

(4) If a distribution system sample taken pursuant to pacagraph (2) exceeds the chiorite MCT, {he
system shall tuke and analyzc a confirmation saniple within 48 hours of being notificd pursuant
to section 64537(c) of the exceedance. If the syslem fils to take a confirmution sample pursuant
to this parapraph, it shall luke and analyze a confirmuation sample within two weeks of
notification of the results of (he first sample.

{¢) Community and nonfransient noncommunity systems using ovone shall monitor for bromate
as follows:

(1) Systems shall {ake one sample per month for each trcatment plant in the system using ovone.
Samples shall be fuken al the entrance to the distribution system while the ozonation system is
operating under normal condilions;

(2) Systems may reduce bromate monitoring from monthly lo ence por quarter, if the system’s
running annval average bromate concenteation is <0.0025 mg/. based on monthly bromatc
measurenients under parageaph (1) for the most recent four guarters, with samples analyzcd
using Method 317.0 Revision 2.0, 321.8, or 326.0. ‘The system shail notify the Depatment in
wriling within 30 days of the change in monitoring frequency. The sysiem shall continue
monthly brumide monitoring of the source waler {o remain on reduced bromatc monitorieg; and
(3) Systems shall vesume routing bromate moniforing pursnant to paragvaph (1) and notify the
Department in wriling within 30 days of the change in monitoring frequency il

(A) The ranning annual average bromate concentralion, computed quarterly, is greatot than

0.0025 mg/L; or




(B) The running annual average soutec water brontide concentration, computed quarterly, is
equal (o or greater than 0.05 ma/L based upon representaiive monthly measurcments.

(d) By the applicable dute specified in section 64530(d), and in Heu of TTHM and [IAAS
monitoring in subsection (a):
(1) Community and nonfransient noncommanily water systems shall monilor for I'THM and

HAAS at the frequencies and location totals indicated in table 64534.2-C and in accordance with

the monitoring plan developed pursuant lo seclion 64534.8;

‘Tahle 64534.2-C

Roeutine Monitoring Frequency for TTHM and HAAS

----------- Minim um momitoring frequency’
Source wafter (ype Persons served | Number of distribution Monitoring
sysiem monitoring period’
focations
Systems using 25,000,000 o 20 dual sample sets per quarter

approved surlace

waler

11,000,000 — 4,999,999

16 dualsamiﬂe sets

per quarter

1250,600 - 999,999

112 dual sample sets

| per quarter

50,000 - 249,995

R dual salnpl_t;yet}'{

per quarier )

10,000 — 49,999

44 usl sample scts

_ per guarter

1713,301-9,999

12 dual samplo scts

por quarter

500 -13,300

1 TTHM and 1 HAAS
sample: one at the location
with the highest TTIIM
measurement, onc at the
location with the highost
HAAS measurement

per quarter

T TTHM and I HAAS
sample: one at the location
with the highest TTHM
measurement, onc at the
location with the highest
HAAS 1nc'as_ug‘g;:m:ul3

Systems using

ground water rot

uttder direct

8 dual ::;é'lﬁj:i"i_t}geis

per :ql.garier

500,000

100,000 - 499,999

6 (iuai_ésﬁi}iﬁie 4ot

hé:‘.’,’.‘..qwt’fcr




influcnee of R o o
surface water 10,000 — 99,599 4 dual smple sets _per guarler_|

T 500..9,999 | 2 dual sample scts _ per year

<500 ' 1°CTIEM and 1| HAAS per year
sample: one atl the location
with the highest TTHM
measurement, ong al the
location with the highest
HAAS mcasm}emf:uu_{3

T Al sysiems shalt moniter during tie month of ighest disinfcelton byproduct concenfrations,
2 Sysiems on quarterly monitoring shall take dual sample scts overy 90 days at each monitoring tocation, except for

systoms nsing approved surface water and serving 500 - - 3,308 persons.
7 Ondy one lncation with a dual sample set per monitaring period is needed if highest TTHM and HAAS

coneentrations ocour at the same location and month,

(2) Undisinfected systems that begin nsing a disinfoctant other than UV light afier the applicable
dates in 40 Code of Federal Regulations, part 141.600 (71 Fed. Reg, 388, January 4, 2006),
which is incorporated by reference, shall consult with the Depariment to identify compliance
monitoving locations for this subsection. Systems shall then develop a monitoring plan in
aceordance wilh scetion 64534.8 that includes those monitoring locations;

(3) Systerns may apply to the Deparfment ko monitor at a reduced Trequency in accordance with
tablc 64534.2-D), any time the LRAA is <0.040 mg/L tor TTHM and <0.030 mg/T, for HAAS at
alt monitoring locations. In addition, the source water sonuat average TOC level, belore any
tveatnent shall be 4.0 mg/L at each trealment plant trcating approved surface water, based on
source waler TOC monitoring conducled pursuant to scetion 64534.6, The application shall
include the resulls of alt TOC, T'CHIM, and HAAS moniforing conducted in the previous 12
months and the proposed revised monitoring plan as required by section 64534.8, The
Department will evaluate data submitted with the application to determine whether or not the
system is cligible for the reduced monitoting specified iv lable 64534.2-D;

Table 64534.2-D
Reduced Menitoring Frequency for TTHM and HAAS

Minimum monitoring frequency

Source wafer fype Persons served Nimber of distribution }y{on?.’o;ring
system monioring period
focations

Systems using =5,000,000 10 dual sample scts: per quactor
approved surface at the locations with the
watct five highest TTHM and
five bighest HAAS
LRAAs




1,000,000 — 4,599,999

at the locations wilh the
four highest TTIIM and
four highest TIAAS

T RAAs

per qu'zii"leir' '

250,000 — 999,999

6 dual sample sels:
at the locations with the
three highest TTHM and
three highest TTAAS

LRAAs

per quarler

50,000 — 249,999

4 dual sanple scts:

at the locations with the
two highest TTHM and
two highest [TAAS
LRAAs

per quiaster

10,000 — 49,999

2 dual samyple scts:

at the locations with the
highest TTHM and highest
HAASLRAAs

. pel guatter

3.301 — 9,999

2 dual sample scis:

one gl the location and
during the quartcr with the
highest TTHM single
measurement, one at the
jocation and during the
guarter with the highest
HAAS single

| measurement

per year

500 — 3,300

) guatter

{ TTHM and 1 ITAAS
smuple; onc af the
location and during the
guaiter with the highest
TITIM single
measurement, one af the
location and during the
guarter with the highest
HAAS single
measurement; 1 dual
sample sel per year if the
highest TTHM and LIAAS
measurements occuried at
the same location and

peL year




Systoms using
anly ground water
not under dircet
influence of
surlace water

"£300,000

4 dual sample sets:

al the focations with the
two highest TTHM and
two highesl HAAS

LRAAs

ner quarler

100,000 - 499,999

2 dual sample sets:
al the locations with the
highest TTHM and highest
HAAS LRAAs

per quarler

10,000 — 99,999

2 dual sumple sets:

one at the localion and
during the quartor with the
highest TTHM single
mcasurement, one at the
loeation and during the
quarter with the lighest
HAAS single

| measurement

.pn()i‘ ycar

1500 - 9,999

{TTIM and | HAAS
sample: one al the
tocation and during the
quarter with the highest
TTHM single
measurcment, one at the
}ocation and during the
guarter with the highest
[TAAS singlc
measurement; 1 dual
sample set per year if the
highest TTIIM and HAAS
measurcments occurred at
the santc location and

quarter

A [ yoar

<500

I 'TTHM and | HAAS
sample: one at the
location and during the
guarter with the highest
TTHM singlc
mengirement, one at the
location and during the
quarter with the highest
HAAS single
measurcinent; 1 dual

é\;éry third
year

10




| sample set every third year
if the highest TTHM and
HAAS measurements
oceurred ut ihe same
location and gquarter

T Systems on quarterly monitoring shalt take dual sample sets 'awﬁf_'fo days,

(4) Systens on reduced monitoring shatl resume routine monitoring pursuant Lo table 64534.2-C
or conduct increased monitoving pursuant {o paragraph (5) GE applicable), il the TTHM LRAA s
>0,040 mg/l, or the HAAS LRAA is >0.030 /L. at any monitaring location (for systems with
quarterly reduced monitoring); 2 TTHM sample is >0.060 mg/T, or o HAAS sample is >0.045
mg/l, (for systems with amual or less frequent monitoring); or the source watcr annual average
TOC level, before any treatment, is >4.0 mg/l, al any treatment plant freating an approved
surface water;

{5) Systems that are required to monitor at a parlicular location annuaily or less frequently than
annually puvsuant (o table 64534.2-C or 64534,2-1) shall incroasc monitoring lo dual sample scts
once per quarter (faken every 90 days) at all loeations if a TTHM samplo is >0.080 mgfl, or a
HAAS sample is >0.060 mg/L at any location, Systems on inereased monitoring may retum o
vouline monitoring spocificd in table 64534,2-C if, after at least four consecutive quarters of
monitoting, the LRAA lor every monitoring location is £0.060 mg/L for 'TTTIM and <0.045
mg/L for IIAAS;

(6) If the operational evaluation level (OLL) exceeds 0.080 mg/l. for TI'HM or 0.060 mg/L fox
HAAS at any monitoring location, systems shatl conduet an operational cvatuation. The
operational ovafuation shall include the examination of system (reatment and distribution
operational practices, including storage lank operations, excess storuge capacity, distribution
system flushing, changes in sources or source water quality, and treatment changes or probleins
that may contribule (o TTHM and HAAS formation and what steps could be considered to
minimize future exceedances, Systems that are able fo identify the cause of the ORL exceedance
may submit a written request Lo the Department fo limit the scope of the evaluation, The request
to Hmit the scope of the evaluation shafl not extend the schedule in section 64537(¢) for
submitting the written report to the Departiment;

(7) Systems on reduced monitoring putsuant to table 64534.2-B may vemain on reduced
monitoring after the applicable date in table 64530-A lor compliance with this subscction
provided the system meets TDSE requitements under section 64530(e) by qualifying for a 40/30
cottification (40 CTR part 141.603) or reeciving a very small system waiver (40 CFR part
141.604), meets the reduced monitoring eriteria in paragraphs (3) and (4), and does not change or
add moniforing locations from those used for compliance monitoring under subsection (a); and
(8) Systems on increased monitoring pursuant (o table §4534.2-A shall remain on increased
monitoring and conduct increased monitoring pursuant to paragraph (5) af the locations in the
monitoring plan developed nnder scetion 64534.8 beginning at the applicable date in table
64530-A for complignce with {his subsection. Systems on increascel inonitoring may return to
voutine monitoring specified in (able 64534.2-C pursuant (o paragraph (5).

Articie 4. Compliance requirements

§64535, General Requirements for Determining Compliance.

(2) All samples faken and analyzed in accordance with section 64534 .8 shall be included in
detenmining compliance, pursuant to seclions 64535.2, 64535.4, and 643364,
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(b) For viofations of the MCLs in seclion 64533 or MRDs in scetion 64533.5 that may pose an
acute risk to human health, notification shat! be pursuant to sections 64463, 64463, 1, and 64465,

§64535.2. Determining Disinfection Byproduocts Compliance.

(a) During the first year of monitoring fov disinfoction byproducts under scetions 64534.2(a), (b),
and {c), the system shail comply with pavagraphs (1) through (3). During the fisst year of
monitoring for TTHM and HAAS under section 64534.2(d), the system shall comply will
paragraphs (1) through (3) at cach mouitoring location:

(1) The average of the first quartor’s results shull not execed four limes the MCLs speeified in
section 64533,

(2) The average of the first and sceond quarter’s results shall not exceed {wo times the MCLs
specified in scotion 64333,

(3) The average of the first, second, and third quatter’s resnlts shall not exceed 1.33 fimes the

MCLs specified in scetion 64533,

(b) TTIIM and HAAS MCL conplisnce, as monitored pursuant to section 64534.2.(), shall be
determined as follows:

(1) Vor systems monitoring quarterly, the running annual avithmetic average, computed quarlerdy,
of quartetly arithmetic averages of all samples collected pursuant to scetion 64534,2(a) shall nol
exceed the MCLs specified in soction 64533,

(2) For systems monitoring fess frequently than quarferly, the average of samples collected that
calendar year pursuant to section 64534.2(«) shafl not exceed the MCLs specified in scction
64533 1{ the average of the samples collected under scetion 64534.2(a) cxceeds the MCL, the
system shall increasc mouitoring (o once per quarler pet treatment plant, Compliance with the
ML shall then be dotermined by the average of the sample that triggered the quartexly
monitoring and the following three quarters of monitoring, unkcss the result of fewer than four
quariers of monitoring will cause the rumning annual sverage to cxceed the MCL, it which casc
ihe system is in violation immediately. Afler monitoring guaiterdy for four gonsceutive guarters
(including the quarter thal triggered the quarterty monitoring), and untik such {ime as monitoring
refusns to routine moniforing pursuant to section 64534.2(a)(3), compliance shall he determined
pursuant to paragraph (1);

(3) If the running annual atithmetic average of quarletly averages covering any consecutive four-
quarter period exceeds the MCL, the systom is in viclation of the MCJ. and shall nokily the
public pursuant to sections 64463, 64463.4, and 64465, including language in appendix 64465-
G, in addition fo reporting to the Department pursuant to seclions 64537 through 64537.6; and
(4) If a public watce syslem fails to complefe four consecutive quaricrs of nioni{oring,
complisnce with the MCL for the last fous-quarier compliance period shall be based on an
average of (he available data,

{c) Compliance for bromate shall be based on a running annual arilhmetic average, computed
guarterty, of monthiy samples {or, for months in which the systen takes morc than one sample,
the average of afl smuples taken during the month) collecled by the system as prescribed by
section 64534.2(c). If the avorage of samplos covering any consccufive four-quarter period
exceeds the MCL, the systen is in violation of the MCL and shall notify the public pursuant to
seclions 64463, 64463.4, and 64465, including language in uppendix 64465-G, in addition (v
reporting o the Department pursnant to sections 64537 through 64537.6. Ifa public water

12 |




system [ails to completc 12 conseculive months of monitoring, compliance with the MCT. for the
Jast four-yuaier compliance period shall be based on an average of the availablc data.

(d) Complisnee for chiorite shall be based on the results of samples collecied by the system
pursuant to sections 64534.2(b),

(1) If any daily sample laken at the cofrance to the distribution system exceeds the chlorite MCJ,
and onc (or more) of the thvee samples taken in the distribution system pursaant Lo soction
64534,2(b)(1) cxcecds the chlorite MCL, the systeni is in violation of the MCI. and shall take
immediate corrcative action 10 reduce the concentration of chiorte to a level below the MCL.
The system shall notify the Department withit 48 hours of the detetmination and notify the
public pursuant Lo the procedures for acute health cisks in sections 64463, 64463.1, and 64465,
including language in appendix 64465-G, in addition to reporting to the Department pursuant to
scetions 64537 (hough 64537.6. Failure to take samples in the distribution system the day
following an excesdance of the chiorite MCT, al the entrance to the distribution aystem is also an
MCL violation and the system shall notify and vepert as desciibed in this paragraph;

{2) If the average of an individoal sample from the {threc-sample sef taken pursuant to
64534,2(b)(2) and its confimation sample taken pursuant to section 64634,2(b)(4) exceeds (e
ehlorite MCL, the system is in violation of the MCL and shall take the corrective action and
notify and vepor! as described in patagraph (1), If the averago of the individual sample and ity
confirmation does nol exceed the MCJ,, the system shatl infovn the Department of the results
within seven days lrom receipt of the original analysis. Failute to takca confirmation sample
pursuant to seetion 64534,2(b)(4) is also an MCI. violation and the system shall notify and report
as described in paragraph (1); and

(3) IF'any two consecutive daily samples taken at (he cotrance to the distribution sysiem cxceed
(he chlorite MCL and all distribution system samples taken.pursuant to 64534.2(b)(1) arc less
than or equal to the chlorite MCL, the system is fn violation of the MCL and shall take corrcctive
action to reduce the concentration of ehlotite to a level helow the MCT, al the point of samphing.
T'he system shall notify the public pursuant to the procedures for nonacute health risks in
seclions 64463, 64463.4, and 64465, including the language in appendix 64463-G, in addition (o
yeporting to the Departmen! pursuant to seclions 64537 through 64537.6. Failure to monitor al
the entrance to the distribution system the day following an exceedance of the chiorite MCL st
the enlrance {o the distribution system is also an MCI. violation and the system shall notify and

roport as described in this paragraph,

(¢) TTHM and ITAAS MCL compliance, as monitored pursuant to scetion 64534.2(d}, shall be
determined as follows:

(1) For systems monitoring quarterly, each locational running an nual average {LRAA),
compuled quarterly, shall nol exceed the MCLs specified in section 64533;

(2) For systems monttoring annually or less frequently, cach sample cotleeted shall not exceed
the MCLs specified in soction 64533, Ifno sample exceeds the MCL, {he sample result for cach
monitoring location shall be considered the LRAA for the monitoring location. If any sample
esccoeds the MCL, systems shall increase monitoring puxsusnt to scction 64534.2(d)(3).
Compliance with the MCT. shall then be determined by the average of the smnple that friggered
the quarterly monitoring snd the following three quarters of monitoring, unless the result of
fewer than four quarters of moniloring will cause the LRAA to excecd the MCI,, in which case
the system is in violation imnediately. After moniloting quarterly for four conseculive quarters
(including the quarter that triggered the quartetly monitoring), and until such time as monitoring

13




roturns to routine monitoring pursuant to section 64534.2(d)(5), compliance shail be determined
puesuant to paragraph (1);

(3) If a system fails to complete four consecutive quatters of monitoring, complance with the
MCL for the fast tour-quarter compliance period shall be based on an average of the available
data. Tmore than one sample per quarter is laken al @ moniforing location, all the samples taken
i the quarter af (hat monitoring location shal} be averaged to determine a quarterly avorage 1o be
used in the LRAA ealeulation; and

(4) I the LRAA exceeds the MCL, caloulated based on four consceutive quarlers ol monitoring
{or the LRAA, calculated based on fowor than four quarlers of data if the MCL would be
exceeded regavdless of the monitoring results of subsequent quatters), the system is in violation
of the MCL and shall nolify the public pursuant to sections 64463, 64463 .4, and 64463,
including the language in appendix 64465-G, in addition to veporting to the Department pursuant
to scctions 64537 through 64537.6,

California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Scction 4463 4: Tier 2 Public Notice

(8) A watcr system shall give public notice pursuant Lo his section if any of the foltowing
OCCUTS:
(1) Any violation of the MCT,, MRDL, and {rcatment lechnique requircments, excepl:
(A) Where a Tier 1 public notice is requircd under section 64463.1; or
(R) Where the Department determines that a Tier | public notice is required, based on
votential health impacts and persistence of the violations;

(2) All viclations of the monitoring and lesting procedure requirements in sections 64421
through 64426.1, article 3 (Primary Standards — Bacleriological Quality), (or which the
Depattment determines that g Tier 2 rather than u Tier 3 public notice is required, based on
polential health impacts and persistence of the violations;

(3) Other violations of the monttoring and testing procedure requirements in this chapter,
and chaplers 15.5, 17 and 17.5, for which the Department delermines that a Tier 2 rather than a
Tier 3 public nofice is required, based on potential health impucts and persistence ol the
violations; or

(4) Failure to comply with the tenns and conditions of any vatianee or cxemplion in
place.

(b) A water system shall give the notice as soon as possible within 30 days after it fearns of u
violation or ocourrence specified in subsection (a), except thal the water systen: may request an
extension of up 10 60 days for providing the notice. This extension would be subject fo (he
Department’s written approval based on the violalion or occurrence having been resolved and the
Department’s determination that public health and welfare would in no way be adversely
affected. In addition, the waler system shall:

{1} Maintain posted nolices in place for as long as the violation or occurrence continues,
but in no casce fess than seven days;

(2) Repeat the notice every (hrec months as long as the violation or oceurrerice contiiues.
Subject (o the Department’s written approval based on its determination that public health would
in no way be adverscly affected, the waler system may be aflowed o notice less frequently but in
no case less than once por year. No allowancs for reduced frequency of notice shalt be given in
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the case of & lotal colifornt MCL violation ox violation of a Chapter 17 treatment tochnique
requirement; amd

(3) For turbidity viotations pursuant fo sections 64652.5(c)2) and 64653(c), (d) and (1),
as applicable, a water system shafl consult with the Depariment as soon as possible within 24
hours after the water system leurns of the violation to determine whether a Tier 1 public notice is
required, 1f consultation does nol tuke place within 24 hours, the water system shatl give Tier
public notice within 48 howrs after learning of the violation.

(c) A waler sysiom shall deliver the notice, in a manner designed Lo teach persons served,
within the xequired (ime period as follows:

(1) Unless otherwisc dirccted by the Depattment in wriling bascd on its assessment of the
violation or occurrence and the potential for udverse effects on public health and weliure,
community water syslems shall give public notice by;

{A) Mail or direct delivery to cach customer teeciving a bill including those that
provide their drinking water to olhers (2.g., schools ov school systems, apartment building
owners, or large private employers), and other service connections to which wator is delivered by
the water system; and

(B) Use of onc or more of the intlowing methods o rcach persons not likely to be
reached by a mailing or dircct delivery (renters, university students, nursing home paticnts,
prison inmates, ¢te.):

1. Publication in a local newspapet;

2. Posting ju conspicuous public places scrved by the watcr systens, or on the
Internet; or

3, Delivery to community organizalions,

(2) Unless othorwise directed by the Department in writing based on its assessynent of the
violation or occurrence and the potential for adverse effects on public heallh and welfare,
noncommunity watex systems shall give {he public notice by:

(A) Posting in conspicuous locations throughout (he area scrved by the water syslem;

and
(B) Using one or more of the following methods to reach persons not lkely to be

reached by a public posting:

1. Pabtication in a local nowspaper or newsletter distribuled to customers;

2. F-mail mossage to employces or students;

3. Posting on the Internet or intranct; or

4, Direct delivery to cach cusiomer.
Califormia Code of Repulations, Title 22, Seclion 64469: Reporting Requircments 3

(In relevan( Parl)

(d) Within 10 days of giving inilial or rcpeat public noticc pursuant o Atticle 18 of ihis
Chapter, excepl for notice piven under 64463.7(d), each water system shall subniil a
cetlification to the Departmoent that it has done so, along with a represeniative copy of ench
{ype of public notice given. :
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ATTACHMENT B

o MRORTANT: INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR DRINKING WATER 2
Este informe contiene informacitn muy impertante sobre su agua potable.
Tradtzcalo o hable con alguien que o entianda bien.

~“Gon Agra Foods has levels of Disinfection Byproducts Above Drinking Water
Standards

Our water systen recently failed a drinking water standard, Although this is not an emergency, as
our customers, you have a right to know what you should do, what happened, and what we are

doing to correct this situation.

We rottinely monitor for the presence of drinking water contaminants. Testing results we received
on show that our system exceeds the standard, or maximum contaminant level
(MCL), for Total Trihalomelhanes and/or Haloacallc Acids (Five). The MCL standards for Total
Trihalomethanes and Haloacetic Acids (Five) are 80 ug/L and 60 ugil, respsctively. The average
fevel of Total Trihalomethanes over the last year was . The average fevel of
Haloacetic Acids (Five) over tha last year was .

What should [ do?

o You do not need to use an alternative {e.g. , bottled) water supply.

» This is not an immediate risk, If it had been, you would have been notified immediately.
However, some people who use waler containing lrihafomalhianes in excess of the MCL over
iany years may expetionce liver, kidney, or cenlral nervous system problems, and may
have an increased risk of golting cancer.

* If you have other heaith issues conceming the consumption of this water, you may wish to

consult youwr doctaor,

What happened? What was done?
[Describe corrective action]

We anticipate resolving the problem within

For mare informalion, pleasscontactfname]___at[phone number] _____ orat
ihe following mailing address. ‘

Please share this information with all the ofher people who drink this water, especially those wiho
may not have received this notice directly (for exampie, people in apartments, nursing homes,
schools, and businosses). Yau can do this by posting this notice in & public place or distiibuting

copios by hand of maf,

Secondary Notification Regltirements
Upon receipt of nofification from a person opérating a public water system, the following notification
must be given within 10 days (Health and Safety Code Section 116450{0)]:

o SCHOOLS: Must notify school employees, students, and parents (if the students are

minors).
s RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROPERTY OWNERS OR MANAGERS (including nursing homes

and care facilities): Must notify fenants.
o BUSINESS PROPERTY OWNERS, MANAGERS, OR OPERATORS: Must nolfy
employees of husinesses located on the property.
This notice is being sent to you by the Con Agra Foods water systenm.

Slate Water System 1D#: 1000536. Date distributed:
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Attachment G

Certification of Completion of Pubilic Notification

This form, when completed and returned to the Division of Drinking Water - Fresho District (265 W.
Bullard Ave. #101, Fresno, CA 93704 or fax to 559-447-3304), serves as cerlification that public
notification to water users was completed as required by Title 22, California Code of Regulations,

Sections 64463-64465,

Public Water System Name;

Public Water System No,:

Public notification for failure to comply with the TTHM MCL and/or HAAS MCL for the guarter
of 20 was performed by the following method(s) (check and complete those that apply):

C1The notice was mailed to users on:
[JA copy of the notice is attached.

OThe notice was hand delivered to water customers on;
CJA copy of the notice is attached.

CThe notice was published in the local newspaper o
[JA copy of the newspaper notice Is altached.

[OThe notice was published in consplcuous places on:
[JA copy of the notice is aitached.
A list of locations the notice was posted s attached.

OThe notice was dsliverad to communily organizations on:
CIA copy of the notice is attached.
[CIA list of community organizations the notice was delivered to is attached.

| hereby certify that the above information is factual.

Printed Name

Title

Signature

Date

Disclostire: Be advised that Section 116726 and 116730 of the California Heallh and Safety Code stata that any person who.
knowingly makes any false statement on any ragort or document submitted for the purpose of compliance. with the atlached
order may be llable for & clvil penalty not to oxceed five thousand dollars (35,000} for separate viclation aach day that the
violation continues, In addition, the viclators may be prosecuted in criminal court and, upon conviction, be punished by a fine
of not more than $26,000 far each day of violation, or be imprisoned in the county jail not ta oxceed one year, or by boththa

fing and Imprisionment,

Dus 1o the Division of Drinking Water wilhin 10 days of jssuance of nollee fo-custemers

Systam Number; 1000536
Enforcement Actiore No.




Attachment D

,,,,,,

................

Water System: Con Agra Foods

Water System No.: 10005306

" Compliance 03_23_"1 AR-009

| Order No.:

violation: T THM MCL_

Calendar Quarter:

Date Prepated:

This form should be prepared and signed by

Water System personnel with appropriate authority to

raplement the directives of the Cornpliance Qrder and the Correclive Action Plan, Please atftach
addillonal shaets as necessary, The quarterly progress report must be submitted by the 10lh day of each

subsequent quarter, to the Division of Birinking Water,

Summary of Compiiance Plan:

Fresno District Office.

.

Tasks ¢ompleted in the reporting quarter:

Tasks remaining to complete:

Anticipate compliance date:

Name

Title

Signature

Date
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